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14.  DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION (Cont.)

Question 1.  According to the RFO, pages 15 & 16 # 59 it states GS levels plus fringe benefits; specifically (b)(1) page 16 indicates Life, accident, and health insurance and sick leave programs, 5.1  percent of basic hourly rate.

This puzzles me since I have pulled JUST the FEHB (health) for Alabama and the 

rates for health alone are more than 5.1 percent of basic hourly rate???

Answer:  Paragraph (b)(1) of clause 52.222-42 should read:  Life, accident and health insurance and sick leave programs, 22 percent of basic hourly rate.  Clause 52.222-42 will be revised and included in the resultant contract.  Please note the information contained in clause 52.222-42 is for information purposes only and should not be considered for proposal purposes.

    Question 2.   Attachment 11 (resume for key personnel) Inquiring as to the reason for salary for each employer and birth date of the key employee?  This is not typical and customary and just curious as to the purpose of providing such information in this RFO?

         Answer:  Attachment 11 has been revised to delete date of birth information and is attached to this amendment.  Salary information is required to provide insight into the responsibilities of the position and relation to compensation received.

Question 3.    This procurement is restricted to 8(a) companies with annual revenue of less than $5 Million.  Under Part III, Value Characteristics No. 3 (page 11), however, the 

“demonstrated experience in managing Government service contracts with a value

greater than $5M” is applicable to this procurement.  Is the $5M in this Value

Characteristic  determined by adding the cost of the Base Period plus all options? 

Managing a five-year contract with an annual value of $1M may require

significantly more skills than managing a ten-year contract with an annual value of

$500,000, even though both contracts equal $5M.  Please clarify.

Answer:  Yes, the value is determined by adding the base period and options (total period of performance not to exceed 5 years).

Question 4.   Under the requirements for the Compensation Plan listed on page 8 of the  RFO (Submittal II), the solicitation states:  “The Offeror is cautioned that materially 

lower or higher compensation than that currently being paid on the existing contract

is undesirable and may indicate a lack of understanding of the complexity of the

total contract.”  In order to meet this requirement, will the Government provide to

the offerors the compensation currently being paid on the existing contract?  It is

our understanding that the Wage Determination does not accurately reflect the

current contract rates of pay.  

Answer:  No, the Government will not provide the labor rates currently being paid on the existing contract, as this is proprietary information.  
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Question 5.  Attachment 11 to the RFO, Key Personnel Resume, requires the Date of Birth for the proposed Key Personnel.  In the private sector this requirement may be 

perceived to be a conflict with Federal legislation prohibiting the use of age as a selection factor for employment.  Please clarify.

Answer:  Attachment 11 has been revised to delete date of birth information and is attached to this amendment.

Question 6.  Are there any unique items/purchases that were required in performance of the contract   (outside the realm of “normal” ODC expenditures)?  This includes

planned and unplanned expenditures.

Answer:  There have been no such purchases other than normal items in performance of the current contract.

Question 7.  How much travel (# trips, locations, and duration) is involved annually in support of this effort?

Answer:  None at this time.  However, as requirements are made known and if travel is required for any given task, the request will indicate such.

Question 8.  Is there a current formalized training program; what is the budget for annual

training?

Answer:  There are MSFC/NASA specific systems that require training.  The Government provided training for these programs.  The current contractor does have a formal training program in place to familiarize new employees with standard office customs.  The Government provided training material; however, there is no budget for this type of training.

Question 9.  What is the current employee retention rate (how many people left the contract during the last 12 months)?

Answer:  The retention rate over the past 12 months is 96 percent.

Question 10.   Do all of the employees on the contract fall under the provisions of the Service Contract Act?

Answer:  No, see Paragraph 15, Background and Historical Data, of the RFO.

Question 11.  What is the history of injuries/accidents over the last 12 months?

Answer:  There has been one lost time injury during the past 12 months.

Question 12.  What is the history of IT/Security breaches over the last 12 months?
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Answer:  There have been no IT/Security breaches during the past 12 months.

Question 13.  Can we get current organizational charts (government and contractor)?

Answer:  MSFC’s organizational chart can be accessed at http://hrd.msfc.nasa.gov (click on general information; official organization charts and charter; PDF version).  The Government is not authorized to release the contractor’s organizational chart to outside parties as this is proprietary information.

Question 14.  How many of the current employees require a security clearance in performance of their duties (number of people and level of clearance)?

Answer:  Four current contractor employees are required to possess security clearances at the secret level.     

Question 15.  How many task orders comprise the current contract?

Answer:  None, the current contract is a firm-fixed-price contract.

Question 16.  Will individual task orders be “rolled over” to the new contract, and awarded to the new contractor, or will they be re-bid among a down-selected group of                

contractors?

Answer:  New task orders will be issued to the successful offeror after contract award.

Question 17.  Is the contractor required to provide any IT equipment in support of this effort not otherwise identified in the RFO?

Answer:  Government furnished property will only be provided for work performed onsite at Marshall Space Flight Center, Government leased facility in Huntsville, AL, and Government provided space at Rocketdyne, Canoga Park, CA.

Question 18. How will NASA handle the renewal of National Agency Checks (NAC) for 

incumbent employees rehired by a new contractor?  Will renewed security checks 

be required?

Answer:  Background screening will be required for all employees hired by the successful Offeror.  Those employees hired by the successful Offeror who currently possess a valid security clearance awarded at MSFC/NASA are excluded from the background screening process.

Question 19.  Are there any specific licenses (local and state) that are required to perform this task?

Answer:  Licenses required to conduct business (i.e., local, or state business licenses) must be obtained, prior to beginning work on this contract.  A valid license for operation of a vehicle is also required.
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Question 20.  Is there shift work involved in this effort?  If so, what positions are impacted and how much overtime is typically billed on a monthly basis?  Is overtime $ tracked

separately and if so, what is the amount expended during the last 12 months?

Answer:  There is no shift work involved in this effort, however the current core hours worked at MSFC are from 6:00 a.m. through 6:00 p.m.  Overtime is billed on an as approved basis by the Contracting Officer, and is tracked separately.  A total of $5100.00 overtime was approved in FY01.

Question 21.  Reference PWS 1.4, when an employee takes in excess of 5 days leave/vacation is the contractor required to “back-fill” the position?
Answer:  Yes.

Question 22. Will NASA provide the current Management, Information Technology Security and Health and Safety Plans as a reference for this RFO?

Answer:  No.  First, the current contract did not require Management and Information Technology Security Plans.  Furthermore, such plans are generally considered to be proprietary and may not be released by the Government, without the incumbent Contractor’s consent.  Offerors shall use innovation in preparing the required plans and should not assume previously submitted plans are sufficient.  The data required to be provided either with the proposal or after contract award is specifically listed in the RFO (DRDs 977CD-001, 977LS-001, and 977SA-001) and should be used as part of the Offeror’s process to independently develop comprehensive and inclusive plans for implementation.

Question 23. What (if any) employees currently work under the “tele-commuting” or “flex-

place” programs identified in the RFO?

Answer: There is currently one contractor employee working flex-place.  That employee is working three days off-site, and two days on-site.

Question 24.  What s/w tool(s) are currently being used to create/manage the inventory control system?

Answer:  The contractor uses Excel, furnished by the Government, to mange the inventory system.

Question 25.  The RFO requests Past Performance information no later than 10 January 2002 at 3:30PM; the Past Performance Form (attachment 12) form letter requires references to submit the form no later than 8 January 2002 to NASA MSFC. 

Which is the correct date for submission of all Past Performance related  

information?

Answer:  Submittal I due date is extended to January 15, 2002, 3:30 p.m., local time.
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Question 26.   Our Past Performance contacts pertain to Federal Government related work.  Most of our CO and COTR contacts are on “use or lose” leave through the holidays (in most cases through 7 January 2002).  The completion of these forms is a task that 

is out of the control of the contractor, and relies on the work schedule of each

CO/COTR.  We respectfully request NASA extend their deadline for Past

Performance forms until at least 17 January 2002, in order to give CO and COTR

contacts enough time to complete and mail their forms to NASA MSFC, given the

holidays.  

Answer:  Submittal I due date is extended to January 15, 2002, 3:30 p.m., local time.

Question 27.   In paragraph 49, “Special 8(a) Contract Conditions”, subparagraph (c)(2) states, “it will not subcontract the performance of any of the requirements of this contract

without the prior written approval of the SBA and the Contracting Officer”.   In

accordance with this paragraph, is NASA requiring any contractor who proposes a

teaming arrangement to submit SBA written approval of their subcontracting

plan?

Answer:  If subcontracting is proposed and accepted by NASA, prior to award, no further approvals are required.  However, after award, the contractor will not subcontract any of the requirement without written approval of the SBA and the Contracting Officer (see Paragraph 50. Limitations on Subcontracting).  Additionally, if the Contractor, in order to meet the 50 percent of the cost of contract performance establishes a teaming arrangement, SBA must approve the arrangement, prior to award.  For further clarification, contact your cognizant SBA.

Question 28.  The sample cover letter for Past Performance states that the surveys to be 

completed by the customers are due at NASA prior to January 8, 2002, yet the 
instructions state that Submittal I is due January 10, 2002. Please clarify the

delivery date of Submittal I, which contains information on Key Personnel and

Past Performance.
Answer:  Submittal I due date is extended to January 15, 2002, 3:30 p.m., local time.

Question 29.  Page 5, paragraph 45(a):  the instructions mention payment of 50% of fee once a month. Will the balance be paid every 6 months based on the evaluation factors

and summary report per Attachment 3?

Answer:  Profit will be assessed, in accordance with attachment 3, every 6-months and any profit remaining or profit deductions shall be determined at the 6-month intervals.

Question 30.  Can the incumbent rebid?

Answer:  No, the incumbent Contractor has exceeded the size standard for this requirement.
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Question 31.  Are the clients satisfied with the current staff?

Answer:  It would be inappropriate for NASA to respond to this question.

Question 32.  How many people are currently on the staff?

Answer:  See paragraph 15, Background and Historical Data, of the RFO.

Question 33.  What was the amount of the last contract?

Answer:  The current value of the contract is $7,179,339.  The contract, with modifications, is available through the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA).  Offerors wishing to obtain a copy should contact the MSFC FOIA Officer, Judi Hollingsworth via e-mail request at judi.hollingsworth@mfsc.nasa.gov.

Question 34.  Is there an opportunity to interview and retain the current staff—If so please provide Project Manager’s name, email address and phone number?

Answer:  The Offeror may interview and propose anyone it so desires; however, the employees working on the current contract may not be contacted during duty hours.  

Question 35:  What is the average amount of OT hours per year?

Answer:  189 overtime hours were approved during FY01.

Question 36:  Does there happen to be an organizational chart for the referenced RFO that can be forwarded to us?  What is the current average length of time for the incumbents?

Answer:  MSFC’s organizational chart can be accessed at http://hrd.msfc.nasa.gov (click on general information; official organization charts and charter; PDF version).  The majority of the current contractor workforce has been in place three years or less.   During the past 12 months, 25 contractor employees were added to the workforce, and attrition is at 4 percent for the past 12 months.

Question 37:  There is a conflict on how the proposal should be put together.  Page 6 has  the "Price" as Part II with Value Characteristics last, but page 13 has Price last.

Having Price last is more desirable because it  doesn't interfere with page count.

Which one should we follow?  Is Price part of page count?

Answer :  Price does not have a page limit and should be included in Volume C.

ATTACHMENT 11

Key Personnel Resume’

(Complete one form for each key person)

Name:  __________________________________________________________

Address:  _______________________________________________________

Telephone Number  Home: __________________ Work: ________________

WORK EXPERIENCE: (Past 5 Years in Chronological Order)

Employer: _______________________________ Date: _______ to ______

Title: ____________________________________  Salary: ____________

Job Description: ________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

Number of Employees Supervised: _________________________________

Supervisor: ___________________________ Telephone No.: __________

Customer Reference and Telephone Number: ________________________

_________________________________________________________________

Employer: _______________________________ Date: _______ to ______

Title: ____________________________________  Salary: ____________

Job Description: ________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

Number of Employees Supervised: _________________________________

Supervisor: ___________________________ Telephone No.: __________

Customer Reference and Telephone Number: ________________________

_________________________________________________________________

Employer: _______________________________ Date: _______ to ______

Title: ____________________________________  Salary: ____________

Job Description: ________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

Number of Employees Supervised: _________________________________

Supervisor: ___________________________ Telephone No.: __________

Customer Reference and Telephone Number: ________________________

_________________________________________________________________

(Continue with additional sheets, as required in above format)
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Key Personnel Resume’





(Continued)

EDUCATION:

High School: ____________________________________________________

_________________________________________ Year Graduated: _______

College:

Name of Institution: ____________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

Type and Year of Degree: ________________________________________

Number of Years Attended: _______________________________________

Name of Institution: ____________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

Type and Year of Degree: ________________________________________

Number of Years Attended: _______________________________________

Name of Institution: ____________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

Type and Year of Degree: ________________________________________

Number of Years Attended: _______________________________________

PROFESSIONAL AND/OR TECHNICAL TRAINING/CERTIFICATION:

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

OTHER PERTINENT INFORMATION:

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

NOTE:  THE GOVERNMENT MAY VERIFY QUALIFICATIONS AND COMMITMENTS 


  WITH THE INDIVIDUALS
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